
 
 
 

 
City of Westminster 
 

  
 

Committee Agenda 
 

Title: 
 

 General Purposes 

   

Meeting Date: 
 

 Wednesday 11th October, 2023 

   

Time: 
 

 5.30 pm 

   

Venue: 
 

 Room 18.05, 64 Victoria Street, London, SW1E 6QP 

   

Members:  Councillors: 
  David Boothroyd (Chair) 

Aicha Less 
Ellie Ormsby 
Mark Shearer 
 

   

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

  
Members of the public are welcome to attend the meeting 
and listen to the discussion Part 1 of the Agenda 
 
Admission to the public gallery is by ticket, issued from the 
ground floor reception at City Hall, 64 Victoria Street.  If you 
have a disability and require any special assistance please 
contact the Committee Officer (details listed below) in 
advance of the meeting. 
 

    
 If you require any further information, please contact the 

Committee Officer, Tristan Fieldsend, Senior Committee and 
Councillor Co-ordinator. 
 
Email: tfieldsend@westminster.gov.uk 
Corporate Website: www.westminster.gov.uk 
 
 

 
 

Public Document Pack

http://www.westminster.gov.uk/


 

 

Note for Members: Members are reminded that Officer contacts are shown at the end of 
each report and Members are welcome to raise questions in advance of the meeting.  
With regard to item 2, guidance on declarations of interests is included in the Code of 
Governance; if Members and Officers have any particular questions they should contact 
the Director of Law in advance of the meeting please. 
 
AGENDA 
PART 1 (IN PUBLIC)  
 
1.   MEMBERSHIP  

 To note any changes to the membership. 
 

 
 
2.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 To receive declarations by Members and Officers of the 
existence and nature of any pecuniary interests or any other 
significant interest in matters on this agenda. 
 

 

 
3.   MINUTES (Pages 3 - 8) 

 To sign the minutes of the meeting held on 14 September 2023. 
 

 
 
4.   FORMATION OF A JOINT HEALTH OVERVIEW AND 

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE BETWEEN WESTMINSTER CITY 
COUNCIL AND THE ROYAL BOROUGH OF KENSINGTON 
AND CHELSEA TO SCRUTINISE THE PROPOSED 
SUBSTANTIAL VARIATION IN DEVELOPMENT AND 
SERVICES IN RELATION TO THE GORDON HOSPITAL, ST 
CHARLES MENTAL HEALTH UNIT AND MENTAL HEALTH 
SERVICES. 
 

(Pages 9 - 18) 

 
5.   PROGRAMME OF MEETINGS 2024/2025 (Pages 19 - 24) 
 
 
 
 
Stuart Love 
Chief Executive 
3 October 2023 
 



 
1 

 

 

 
CITY OF WESTMINSTER 

 
 

MINUTES 
 
 

General Purposes  
 

MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS 
 
Minutes of a meeting of the General Purposes Committee held on Thursday 14th 
September 2023, Room 18.06 - 18h Floor, Westminster City Hall, 64 Victoria Street, 
London, SW1E 6 QP. 
 
Members Present: Councillors David Boothroyd (Chair), Aicha Less, Ellie Ormsby and 
Mark Shearer 
 
 
1 MEMBERSHIP 
 
1.1 There were no changes to the membership. 

 
 
2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
2.1  There were no declarations of interest. 
 
 
3 MINUTES 
 
3.1  RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meeting held on 21 June 2023 be 

signed by the Chair as a correct record of the proceedings. 
 
 
4 APPROVAL OF COMPENSATION PAYMENT FOLLOWING A LOCAL 

GOVERNMENT AND SOCIAL CARE OMBUDSMAN (LGSCO) 
INVESTIGATION 

 
4.1  The Committee was presented with a report providing details of a complaint 

submitted by a service user through the Council’s complaints process and to 
the Social Care Ombudsman. Following this complaint, an apology was 
offered and subsequently a compensation payment of £500. Following the 
submission of further information, the Ombudsman required a compensation 
payment of £2,000 to be paid to the service user. 

 
4.2  The Committee noted the contents of the report and discussed its details. It 

was hoped that lessons had been learnt from the case and the Committee 
was pleased to note that a working group has been assembled to address 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



 
2 

 

learning from the case and implement improvements to processes regarding 
referral and assessment pathways as well as special order and minor 
adaptations. 

 
RESOLVED:  
 
That the payment of compensation of £2,000 be approved and noted in order 
to comply with the Social Care Ombudsman’s order. 

 
 
5 APPROVAL OF COMPENSATION PAYMENT FOLLOWING A HOUSING 

OMBUDSMAN INVESTIGATION (1) 
 
5.1  The Committee was presented with a report providing details of a complaint 

submitted by a tenant through the Council’s complaints process and to the 
Housing Ombudsman. Following this complaint, a compensation payment of 
£5,033 was required to be paid to the tenant from the Housing Revenue 
Account.  

 
5.2  The Committee noted the contents of the report and discussed its details. It 

was hoped that lessons had been learnt from the case and the Committee 
noted that a full Senior Management Team review had been carried out, with 
their findings and actions shared with the Housing Ombudsman Service and 
the Regulator to satisfy their compliance.  

 
RESOLVED:  
 
That the payment of compensation of £5,033 be approved to comply with the 
Housing Ombudsman’s order. 

 
 
6 APPROVAL OF COMPENSATION PAYMENT FOLLOWING A HOUSING 

OMBUDSMAN INVESTIGATION (2) 
 
6.1  The Committee was presented with a report providing details of a complaint 

submitted by a tenant through the Council’s complaints process and to the 
Housing Ombudsman. Following this complaint, a compensation payment of 
£2,100 was required to be paid to the tenant from the Housing Revenue 
Account.  

 
6.2  The Committee noted the contents of the report and discussed its details. It 

was hoped that lessons had been learnt from the case and the Committee 
was pleased to note that major works contractors had been reminded of the 
Council’s expectations with regards to treating residents with dignity and 
respect and of the Council’s expectations with regards to vulnerable residents. 
The need to arrange visits to homes by pre-booked appointments and not 
unannounced visits had also been reiterated. A review was also being 
undertaken which would include an assessment of record keeping of 
communications with residents and contractors. 
 
 

Page 4



 
3 

 

RESOLVED:  
 
That the payment of compensation of £2,100 be approved to comply with the 
Housing Ombudsman’s order. 

 
 
7 APPROVAL OF COMPENSATION PAYMENT FOLLOWING A HOUSING 

OMBUDSMAN INVESTIGATION (3) 
 
7.1  The Committee was presented with a report providing details of a complaint 

submitted by a tenant through the Council’s complaints process and to the 
Housing Ombudsman. Following this complaint, a compensation payment of 
£3,430 was required to be paid to the tenant from the Housing Revenue 
Account.  

 
7.2  The Committee noted the contents of the report and discussed its details. It 

was hoped that lessons had been learnt from the case and the Committee 
was pleased to note that a review had been undertaken with regard to training 
and guidance to staff about assessing properties prior to ending decants, with 
the aim of ensuring the failings identified in the report were not repeated. The 
processes for monitoring repair work completed by repairs contractors was to 
an appropriate standard would also be reviewed. In addition, processes for 
recording repairs would also be assessed and this would include attendance 
times and ongoing progress of work with the aim of ensuring the failings 
identified in the report were not repeated. 
 
RESOLVED:  
 
That the payment of compensation of £3,430 be approved to comply with the 
Housing Ombudsman’s order. 

 
 
8 COUNCILLORS PARENTAL LEAVE POLICY 
 
8.1 The Committee received a report presenting a revised parental leave policy 

for Councillors. It was noted that a review had been undertaken as the policy 
had not been appraised since the adoption of the original policy in September 
2019, but was also in response to the ‘Fairer Westminster’ motion passed by 
Full Council on 28 June 2023. This motion committed the Council to “Review 
the Council’s parental leave policy, setting out members’ entitlement to 
maternity, paternity, shared parental and adoption leave and relevant 
allowances to ensure it as inclusive and fair as possible”.  

 
8.2 Members considered the proposed amendments to the policy and noted how 

they represented greater alignment with practice across London as well as 
clarifying and simplifying the process by which parental leave may be 
requested and handled.  

 
8.3 The Committee was pleased to note that the amendments included:  
 

Page 5



 
4 

 

•  Clarifying that members were entitled to 12 months leave, subject to 
the ‘six month rule’; 

 
•  An extension to the length of time for the payment of any Special 

Responsibility Allowance (SRA);  
 
•  Revision of the shared parental leave policy so that any Councillors 

who have partners, who were not Council Members, but were taking 
parental leave, were entitled to share that leave and be reimbursed 
appropriately; and  

 
•  The inclusion of clearer processes on how Councillors apply for 

parental leave and expectations on what arrangements should be put 
in place when Councillors were taking this leave.  

 
8.4 The Committee agreed that the proposed revisions to the Policy underscored 

the Council’s commitment to creating a supportive work environment that 
recognised the diverse needs of members. It also reflected the Council’s 
commitment to inclusivity and gender equality, enhancing diverse 
representation. Members were of the opinion that by offering enhanced 
parental leave, the Council would ensure members’ well-being, foster a 
positive environment and promote sustainable, dedicated public service. Of 
particular importance was that the revised policy would strengthen the 
council’s effectiveness, responsiveness, and connection with the community it 
served.  
 
RESOLVED:  
 
That Full council be recommended to approve the revised Parental Leave 
Policy for Councillors, attached at Appendix A of the report, and it be adopted 
into the Council’s Constitution as part of an Appendix to the Member’s 
Allowances Scheme. 

 
 
9 POLICY AND SCRUTINY REVIEW 
 
9.1 The Committee considered the independent review that had taken place into 

policy and scrutiny at Westminster by the Centre for Governance and Scrutiny 
("CfGS"). It was recognised that it had been instigated to ensure the function 
met the high expectations of the Council, local communities, and partners by 
providing the most effective and impactful scrutiny function possible. It was 
noted how the Scrutiny Commission agreed to establish a Task Group to work 
through each recommendation and following consensus the preferred option 
was now before the Committee.  

 
9.2 Members were interested to learn how it had been recommended that the 

Policy and Scrutiny Committees be restructured and constituted based on 
strategic themes, which had been identified as important to the organisation 
and prioritised by scrutiny members. It was explained that this would 
represent a move away from the existing practice of constituting Committees 
solely in opposition to Cabinet Member portfolios. It was explained that this 

Page 6



 
5 

 

had caused committees to try to performance manage Cabinet Members and 
the Committee considered how it was felt this had led to a lack of focus with 
committees trying to do too much across sometime disparate portfolios of 
work. Instead, the Committee was interested to learn how the new thematic 
approach would allow scrutiny to take a more strategic approach to its work, 
focusing in on areas of major policy or service priority/change with a view to 
making impact through meaningful and timely recommendations to decision 
makers.  

 
9.3 Following a detailed discussion the Committee discussed the replacement of 

the existing Policy and Scrutiny Committee structure with a revised Policy and 
Scrutiny Committee structure and noted that if approved the new structure 
would take effect from 27 September 2023.  

 
RESOLVED:  
 
That Full Council be recommended to approve:  
 
1)  The replacement of the existing Policy and Scrutiny Committee 

structure with a revised Policy and Scrutiny Committee structure as 
summarised in the report, and for this new structure to take effect from 
27 September 2023, following the current round of committee 
meetings;  

 
2)  A revised Chapter 4 (“Policy and Scrutiny”) of the Council’s 

Constitution as set out at Appendix A of the report, including revised 
terms of reference for Policy and Scrutiny Committees, including the 
North West London Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee; 
and  

 
3)  The delegation of authority to the Monitoring Officer to make other 

minor amendments to provisions in the Constitution consistent with the 
contents of this report. 

 
(Councillor Shearer voted against the recommendations). 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The Meeting ended at 7.11pm. 
 
 
 
 
 
CHAIRMAN:   DATE  
 
 
 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



 
Committee Report 

Meeting or Decision Maker: General Purposes Committee  

Date: 11 October 2023 

Classification: General Release  

Title: Formation of a Joint Health Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee (JHOSC) between 
Westminster City Council (WCC) and the 
Royal Borough of Kensington and Chelsea 
(RBKC) to scrutinise the proposed 
substantial variation in development and 
services in relation to the Gordon Hospital, 
St Charles Mental Health Unit and Mental 
Health Services. 

Wards Affected: All in both Authorities. 

Fairer Westminster/Policy 
Context: 

The scrutiny of proposed changes to 
services will allow both Council’s as local 
authorities to jointly scrutinise the proposals 
to ensure that residents interests are 
represented and will allow the Council’s to 
advance equality of opportunity in 
discharging their public sector equality duty 
in creating positive impacts for protected 
groups. 

Financial Summary: Potential costs are anticipated to be 
relatively minimal. The administration of the 
JHOSC will be shared equally between both 
Councils, will be time limited to the life of 
the particular scrutiny being conducted and 
will be drawn from existing staff. Any 
additional costs or expenditure can be 
managed from within existing budgets. 

Report of:  Parveen Akhtar (Director of Law and 
Governance) 

 

Page 9

Agenda Item 4



1. Executive Summary 

1.1. Health Services are required to consult a local authority’s Heath Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee about any proposals they have for a substantial 
development or variation in the provision of health services in their area. 
When these substantial developments or variations affect a geographical 
area that covers more than one local authority, they are required to 
consult a Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee (JHOSC) formed 
with membership of those local authority areas affected. 

1.2. Central and Northwest London NHS Foundation Trust (CNWL) have 
proposed a substantial development and variation to the services 
provided at the Gordon Hospital in Westminster (The Gordon Hospital) 
and St Charles Hospital Mental Health Unit in Kensington and Chelsea (St 
Charles) (the Proposal). This follows the temporary closure of two 
inpatient wards at the Gordon Hospital in March 2020.The Northwest 
London Integrated Care Board (ICB) are managing the formal public 
consultation process. 

1.3. Following a period of discussion with CNWL, the ICB and other local 
authorities in the geographical area surrounding the area of the Proposal 
it has been proposed that the authorities that should form a dedicated, 
time limited JHOSC for the purposes of scrutinising the Proposal are 
Westminster City Council (WCC) and the Royal Borough of Kensington 
and Chelsea (RBKC). These are the two local authorities situated in the 
geographical area which will be most significantly affected. 

1.4. This report seeks WCC approval to set up a JHOSC between WCC and 
RBKC to specifically scrutinise the Proposal, approve the terms of 
reference for the JHOSC and take a decision on delegation of power as a 
local authority to make referral to the Secretary of State in the 
circumstances described further in this report.  

2. Recommendations: 

It is recommended that the General Purposes Committee: 

2.1. Approve the establishment of a JHOSC between WCC and RBKC 
specifically for the purpose of scrutiny of the Proposal. 

2.2. Approve the terms of reference for the JHOSC set out at Appendix A of 
this report. 

2.3. Approve that three Councillors who are not members of the Council’s 
executive may be appointed to the JHOSC from WCC and that such 
appointments be made in line with the principles of political proportionality. 
Individual Members will be appointed to the JHOSC by the Chief 
Executive on the advice of Group Whips in line with existing procedures 
for Committee appointments. 

Page 10



2.4. Agree that WCC delegates its power of referral to the Secretary of State 
under s23(9) of the Local Authority (Public Health, Health, and Wellbeing 
Boards and Health Scrutiny) Regulations 2013 to the newly formed 
JHOSC subject to all members of that JHOSC being in agreement on any 
referral and if they are not the power will then revert to each individual 
Council. 

2.5. Agree to delegate authority to the Monitoring Officer to make any 
amendments needed to the Constitution or Terms of Reference as may 
be required. 

3.  Reasons for Decision   

3.1. To comply with the legislative requirements for WCC jointly with RBKC to 
scrutinise a proposal for a substantial variation to development and health 
services provision in relation to the Proposal mentioned above. 

4. Background, including Policy Context 

4.1. On the 5th May 2023 CNWL notified WCC, RBKC and other Local 
Authorities in the geographical area that it was considering a proposal to 
substantially vary the development and provision of services at the 
Gordon Hospital and St Charles Mental Health Unit.  

4.2. During the months of May 2023 to September 2023 CNWL held a number 
of workshop discussions with WCC, RBKC and those local authorities and 
other partners whom they considered to be affected. In addition, they 
consulted with the Northwest London Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee for their views.  

4.3. Following these workshops and consultation, the ICB indicated that the 
two local authorities best placed to form a JHOSC for the purposes of 
scrutinising the Proposal were WCC and RBKC. 

4.4. The final formal notification of the Proposal, full details of it and details of 
the public consultation are expected the week of the 9th of October 2023. 

4.5. We are informed that the ICB hope to launch the public consultation the 
same week, 9th October 2023 and that the consultation will run until the 
end of January 2024. It is therefore, important that the JHOSC is set up as 
soon as possible in order to allow scrutiny of the Proposal at the earliest 
opportunity. 

4.6. Regulation 30 of the Local Authority (Public Health, Health, and Wellbeing   
Boards and Health Scrutiny) Regulations 2013 (The 2013 Regulations) 
requires local authorities to appoint “mandatory” joint committees where a 
relevant NHS body or health service provider consults more than one 
local authority’s health scrutiny function about “substantial reconfiguration” 
proposals. 

Page 11



4.7. Appointment of a JHOSC for this purpose and to approve its terms of 
reference is a matter which requires Local Authority approval.  

4.8. Regulation 30 of the 2013 Regulations provides that where a mandatory 
JHOSC is set up for scrutiny of proposals of this nature:    

• Only the joint committee (JHOSC) may respond to the consultation 
(i.e., rather than each individual local authority scrutiny committees 
responding separately);  

• Only the joint committee may exercise the power to require the 
provision of information by the relevant NHS body or health service 
provider about the  proposal;  

• Only the joint committee may exercise the power to require members 
or employees of the relevant NHS body or health service. 

• Only the joint committee may make comments on the proposal 
consulted on pursuant to regulations.  

4.9. In addition to the powers outlined in paragraph 4.8 above local authorities 
have the power to make a referral to the Secretary of State under section 
23(9) of the 2013 Regulations n the following circumstances: 

• If not satisfied with the adequacy of content of the consultation. 
• If not satisfied that sufficient time has been allowed for consultation.  
• If it considers that the proposal would not be in the interests of the 

health service in its area.  
• If it has not been consulted, and it is not satisfied that the reasons 

given for not carrying out consultation are adequate. 
 

4.10. The power of referral to the Secretary of State under the 2013 
Regulations is exercised in limited circumstances following a 
recommendation that the JHOSC may have made to the NHS body / 
health service and where it has not been possible to involve them to reach 
an agreement, it is considered that they have failed to take reasonably 
practical steps to reach an agreement or done so within in reasonable 
time frame. 

4.11. The power to make referrals to the Secretary of State is invested in the 
local authority whom may choose to retain their own individual power of 
referral separately from any JHOSC or may choose to delegate it in the 
following ways: 

• To their already constituted Health Overview and Scrutiny 
Committees 

• To the new JHOSC. 
• To the new JHOSC with reservation of certain aspects of the power 

for example: 
o if all members of the new JHOSC are not in full agreement the 

power will revert to each individual Council,  

Page 12



o to the new JHOSC reserving the final decision to each 
individual Council.    

 
4.12. The delegation of power from each local authority is an individual choice 

and if both authorities decide differently then the power of referral can only 
be exercised by the Council if they have retained it, or a committee to 
which it has been delegated.  

4.13. Following consideration of the differing options available for delegation of 
the power of referral to the Secretary of State, the fact that the proposal 
crosses over two local authority areas each of whom may have different 
considerations and potential concerns and for ease of procedure, officer 
recommendation is for WCC to agree to recommendation in paragraph 
2.4 above.   

5. Proposals 

5.1. To set up a JHOSC consisting of members of WCC and RBKC with a time 
limited role specifically to scrutinise the proposal. 

5.2. The detailed terms of reference for the Joint Committee are attached at 
appendix A. 

6. Financial Implications 

6.1. There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. 
However, there will be costs, anticipated as relatively minimal, associated 
with administration of the JHOSC. The administration will be managed by 
employed staff from both Authorities sharing duties and any associated 
costs will be met from within existing Budget.  

7. Legal Implications 

7.1. The legal requirements are set out in the body of this report. 

7.2        In accordance with the Local Government Act 2000 members may not be 
members of authorities executive. Scrutiny committees must generally reflect the 
political make-up of the full Council. It is therefore recommended that each council 
make appointments which reflect the political proportionality of its council.  

 
7.3 A decision is needed as a matter of urgency in order that the JHOSC can be set 

up to scrutinise the Proposal at the earliest possible stage (week of 9th October 
2023). The next available WCC Full Council meeting is not until the 15th 
November 2023. Therefore, the Monitoring Officer has advised that in 
accordance with WCC Constitution as the proposal is to create a time limited 
Joint Scrutiny Committee (not a standing Committee) the General Purposes 
Committee are authorised under their terms of reference to take this decision on 
behalf of Full Council. Should the recommendations in this report be agreed, the 
decision will be reported to the next meeting of Full Council. 

Page 13



8. Carbon Impact 

 
8.1. There are no carbon implications arising out of this report. 

9. Equalities 

9.1. In line with the Public Sector Equality Duty, public bodies must, in the 
exercise of their functions, give due regard to the need to eliminate 
discrimination, harassment, victimisation, to advance equality of 
opportunity and foster good relations between those who share a 
protected characteristic and those who do not.  

9.2. The effective scrutiny of the proposals will allow the local authority to fulfil 
its Public Sector Equality Duty. 

 
If you have any queries about this Report or wish to inspect any 

of the Background Papers, please contact: 
Richard Cressey, Head of Governance and Councillor Liaison 

rcressey@westminster.gov.uk  

 

APPENDICES 

Appendix A – Proposed Terms of Reference for the JHOSC. 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

1. Scrutiny Guidance Local authority health scrutiny (publishing.service.gov.uk) 
2. Relevant legislation and policy 

 • Department of Health (2013), The NHS Constitution: the NHS belong to us all: 
http://www.nhs.uk/choiceintheNHS/Rightsandpledges/NHSConstitution/Documents/2
013/ the-nhs-constitution-for-england-2013.pdf  

• Department of Health (2012), The Mandate: A mandate from the Government to 
the NHS Commissioning Board: April 2013 to March 2015: 
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/21313
1/m andate.pdf  

• Government guidance on consultation principles (2012): 
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/consultation-principles-guidance • 
Health and Social Care Act 2001, sections 7 – 10: 
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2001/15/contents  

• Health and Social Care Act 2012, sections 190 – 192: 
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2012/7/contents  

• Local Government Act 2000: http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2000/22/contents  

Page 14

mailto:rcressey@westminster.gov.uk
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1107226/Local_authority_health_scrutiny.pdf
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2001/15/contents
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2012/7/contents
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2000/22/contents


• The Localism Act 2011: 
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2011/20/contents/enacted • National Health 
Service Act 2006, sections 244 – 245: 
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2006/41/contents  

• Statutory Instrument No. 2013/218 The Local Authority (Public Health, Health and 
Wellbeing Boards and Health Scrutiny) Regulations 2013: 
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2013/218/contents/made 

 

  

Page 15

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2006/41/contents
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2013/218/contents/made


APPENDIX A 

 

Inner West London Mental Health Services Reconfiguration Joint Health 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

 

1 Name  

1.1 Inner West London Mental Health Services Reconfiguration Joint Health 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee (RBKC and WCC).   

2 Terms of Reference   

Purpose   

2.1 Health Services are required to consult a local authority’s Heath Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee about any proposals they have for a substantial 
development or variation in the provision of health services in their area.  When 
these substantial developments or variations affect a geographical area that 
covers more than one local authority, the local authorities are required to 
appoint a Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee (JHOSC) for the 
purposes of the consultation.   

2.2 These terms of reference set out the arrangements for WCC and RBKC to 
operate a JHOSC to consider the Proposal made in relation to the services at 
the Gordon Hospital, the St. Charles Mental Health Centre and wider 
community mental health services in the two boroughs, in line with the 
provisions set out in legislation and guidance.   

2.3 This Committee will cease to exist upon the conclusion of its work.   

3. Remit  

3.1 The JHOSC will operate formally as a statutory joint committee, i.e. where the 
councils have been required under Regulation 30 Local Authority (Public 
Health, Health and Well-being Boards and Health Scrutiny) Regulations 2013 
to appoint a joint committee for the purposes of providing independent scrutiny.  

3.2 Regulation 30 of the 2013 Regulations provides:     

• Only the joint committee may respond to the consultation (i.e., rather than 
each individual local authority responding separately).   

• Only the joint committee may exercise the power to require the provision of 
information by the relevant NHS body or health service provider about the 
proposal.   

• Only the joint committee may exercise the power to require members or 
employees of the relevant NHS body or health service.  

• make comments on the proposal consulted on pursuant to regulation. 

Page 16



3.3 With the exception of those matters referred to in the paragraph above 
responsibility for all other health scrutiny functions and activities remain with the 
respective local authority Health Scrutiny Committees.   

4. Governance and Membership  

4.1  The JHOSC will be hosted by both authorities on rotation and meetings of the 
JHOSC will be conducted in accordance with the Standing Orders of the host 
local authority at the time.   

4.2 Each of the two participating authorities will appoint three non-executive 
Members to the JHOSC and each will notify the other of their appointments.   

4.3 Each member of the JHOSC must be a properly elected Councillor to a seat on 
their respective authority and will cease to be a member of the JHOSC with 
immediate effect should they no longer meet this requirement.   

4.4 Appointments by each authority to the JHOSC will be politically proportionate 
to that authority.    

4.6 The quorum for meetings will be a minimum of 4 members, 2 from each 
authority.  However, any vote on a referral to the Secretary of State will require 
all members to vote and be in agreement.    

4.7 The chairing arrangements for the JHOSC for the duration of the Committee 
shall be elected and or decided at its first formal meeting and drawn from those 
Members in attendance at that meeting. Should the Chair cease to be a 
member of the JHOSC, a new Chair shall be elected at the next formal meeting.   

4.8 The Vice-Chair of the JHOSC for the duration of the Committee shall be elected 
at its first formal meeting and drawn from those Members in attendance at that 
meeting. In the absence of the Chair, the Vice Chair shall assume all chairing 
responsibilities. Should the Vice- Chair cease to be a member of the JHOSC, a 
new Vice-Chair shall be elected at the next formal meeting.   

4.9 In the absence of both the Chair and Vice-Chair at any Meeting of the JHOSC, 
Members in attendance shall appoint a Chair for that Meeting from amongst 
their number, who shall, while presiding at that Meeting, have any power or duty 
of the Chair in relation to the conduct of the Meeting.   

5. Administration  

5.1 The overall coordination, facilitation of meetings, policy support and other 
administrative arrangements will be shared by the scrutiny and governance 
teams of both authorities.   

5.2 Legal advice and support to the JHOSC will be provided by Bi-Borough Legal 
Services as well as the Monitoring Officers of both authorities.  

 

 

Page 17



6. Reporting  

6.1 Members of the JHOSC may provide updates to the full Council of their Local 
Authority on its proceedings in accordance with the requirements of their 
respective authority.   

6.2 Any recommendations of the JHOSC shall be communicated to relevant 
parties in writing with a summary of the evidence and the matter under 
consideration.  

 

Page 18



 

General Purposes Committee 
 
  

Date: 11 October 2023 

Classification: For General Release 

Title: Programme of Meetings 2024/2025 

Wards Affected: N/A 

Financial Summary: There are no financial implications 

Report of:  Director of Law and Governance 

 
1. Executive Summary 
 
1.1 The programme of meetings for 2024/25 has been drafted broadly in accordance 

with the pattern previously agreed.   
 
 
2. Recommendations 
 
2.1     That the Council be recommended to approve the dates of full Council Meetings, 

as follows: 19 June 2024, 18 September 2024, 13 November 2024, 22 January 
2025, 5 March 2025, 14 May 2025 (Annual). 

 
2.2 That the Programme of other formal Meetings set out in Appendix A be 

approved. 
 
 
3. Background Information 

Programme of Meetings 2024/25 
 
3.1  The General Purposes Urgency Sub-Committee has previously agreed that the 

programme of meetings be prepared having regard to the following basic 
principles:  

 
Mondays:  Cabinet  
 
Tuesdays:  Planning 
 
Wednesdays: Council Meetings  
 
Thursdays:  Licensing meetings held during the daytime.  
 Page 19

Agenda Item 5



 
This strategy allows for a more consistent approach to programming meetings. 

 
3.2 In June 2023, Full Council approved a Motion which committed the Council to 

“Provide flexibility in Council business by regularly reviewing and staggering 
meeting times where appropriate and feasible”. This report and recommended 
programme of meetings takes account of this and has been subject to such a 
review. The volume of meetings required in Westminster, mostly as a result of 
the Licensing and Planning systems and the corresponding volume of 
applications which require determination at Committee, place significant pressure 
on the timetable of meetings. Furthermore, this programme attempts to avoid 
meetings during major school holidays and religious celebrations to ensure 
maximum opportunity for Members and Officers to participate, This does 
however, further limit the dates on which meetings may be held and was 
considered as part of the review. 

 
3.3  The programme reflects four meetings for each of the Policy and Scrutiny 

Committees as recommended by the Scrutiny Improvement Task Group. The 
Committees are empowered by Standing Orders to arrange further meetings or 
to otherwise amend the programme if required by the needs of their work 
programme. Three meetings of the Licensing Committee and three meetings of 
the Planning and City Development Committee have been programmed. 

 
3.4  The programme includes provision for the Discretionary Housing Panel and the 

Rating Advisory Panel to meet on a programme basis. The programmes have 
been developed having regard to the expected weight of business in each case. 

 
 
4. Legal Implications 
 
4.1 The Programme of Meetings in respect of Council meetings is a matter for the full 

 Council to agree.  The programme includes provision for Council meetings to be 
 held when it is known full Council decisions will be required - particularly the 
setting of Council tax prior to 11 March each year and the holding of an Annual 
Meeting in either March, April or May in accordance with the provisions of the 
Local Government Act 1972. 

 
4.2 The programme of Cabinet meetings is included in the programme for illustrative 
 purposes.  The Leader of the Council is responsible for approving the 
 programme for these meetings. 
 
 
5. Financial Implications 
 
5.1 No financial implications. 
 
 
6. Consultation 
 Page 20



6.1 The Programme of Meetings has been circulated for comment to the Party 
Whips. Any comments received will be reported at the meeting. 

 
 

If you have any queries about this Report or wish to inspect any of the 
Background Papers please contact Tristan Fieldsend: 07812 760 335 

Email: tfieldsend@westminster.gov.uk 
 

 
 
 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
• None 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 21

mailto:tfieldsend@westminster.gov.uk


Programme of Meetings 2024/25 
 

 
Council 
19 June 2024, 18 September 2024, 13 November 2024, 22 January 2025, 5 March 
2025, 14 May 2025 
 
Cabinet 
20 May 2024, 8 July 2024, 23 September 2024, 18 November 2024, 10 February 2025, 
1 April 2025 
 
General Purposes 
5 June 2024, 23 October 2024, 29 January 2025 
 
Standards Committee 
11 July 2024, 28 November 2024, 13 February 2025 
 
Licensing Committee  
3 July 2023, 25 September 2024, 12 February 2025 
 
Planning & City Development 
26 June 24, 23 October 24, 26 March 25 
 
Pension Fund Committee  
20 June 2024, 17 October 2024, 12 December 2024, 13 March 2025 
 
Pension Board 
18 July 2024, 21 November 2024, 30 January 2025, 27 March 2025 
 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee  
2 July 2024, 10 October 2024, 10 December 2024, 18 March 2025 
 
Young People, Learning and Employment Policy and Scrutiny Committee  
25 June 2024, 1 October 2024, 3 December 2024, 10 March 2025 
 
Vulnerable Adults, Health and Communities Policy and Scrutiny Committee 
17 June 2024, 26 September 2024, 26 November 2024, 4 March 2025 
 
Housing and Regeneration Policy and Scrutiny Committee 
27 June 2024, 30 September 2024, 5 December 2024, 12 March 2025 
 
Climate Action, Environment and Highways Policy and Scrutiny Committee 
20 June 2024, 24 September 2024, 27 November 2024, 6 March 2025 
 
Audit and Performance 
24 June 2024, 5 September 2024, 22 October 2024, 25 November 2024, 11 March 
2025 
 

APPENDIX A

Page 22



Health & Wellbeing Board – 6 June 2024, 18 July 2024, 10 October 2024, 21 November 
2024, 23 January 2025, 20 March 2025 
 
Discretionary Housing Payments Panel – 11 June 2024, 9 July 2024, 17 September 
2024, 15 October 2024, 19 November 2024, 21 January 2025, 25 February 2025, 25 
March 2025, 22 April 2025 
 
Ratings Panel – 18 June 2024, 16 July 2024, 24 September 2024, 5 November 2024, 
10 December 2024, 28 January 2025, 11 March 2025, 29 April 2025 
 

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 Formation of a Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee between Westminster City Council and the Royal Borough of Kensington and Chelsea to Scrutinise the Proposed Substantial Variation in Development and Services in Relation to the Gordon Hospital, St Charles Mental Health Unit and Mental Health Services.
	5 Programme of Meetings 2024/2025

